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• 

Responsibilities of the Management and Supervisory Board for the preparation and approval of the 
annual financial statements 

The Management Board of the Bank is required to prepare financial statements of the Bank for each 
financial year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and of the results of its 
operations and cash flows, in accordance with applicable accounting standards and is responsible for 
maintaining proper accounting records to enable the preparation of such financial statements at any time. It 
has a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably available to it to safeguard the assets of 
the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Management Board is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies to conform with applicable 
accounting standards and then apply them consistently; making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Bank will continue in business. 

The Management Board is responsible for the submission to the Supervisory Board of its annual report on 
the Bank together with the annual financial statements, following which the Supervisory Board is required to 
approve the annual financial statements for submission to the General Assembly for adoption. 

The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 79 were authorised by the Management Board on 16 April 
2019 for issuing to the Supervisory Board and are signed below to signify this: 

On behalf of the Management Board 

Razvojna Banka FBiH 
Igmanska 1 
71000 Sarajevo 
Bosna i Hercegovina 

16 April 2019 



Deloitte. Deloitte d.o.o.
Zmaja od Bosne 12c
71000 Sarajevo
Bosnia and Herzegovina

Tel: +387 (0) 33 277 560
Fax: +387 (0) 33 277 56I
www.deloitte.com/ba

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the owners of Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina (the

"Bank"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of profit or loss,

statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash flows for the year then

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

the Bank as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance

with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities underthose

standards are further described in lhe Auditols Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statemenfs section of our

report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 20 to the financial statements, the total court proceedings against the Bank amount to KM 2,685

thousand as at 31 December 2018. Of the total amount, KM 2,283 thousand is related to labour dispute proceedings

of employees against the Bank, and KM 402 thousand is related to other proceedings. The Management of the Bank

believes that it is not possible to estimate the outcome of the outstanding proceedings, hence provisions on this basis

have not been created as at 31 December2018.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Deloltte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ("DTTL" or "Deloitte Global"). its network of
member firms, and their related entities (collectlvely, the "Deloitte Network"). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities.
DTTL does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/balabout for a more detailed description of DTTL and its member flrms.

In Bosnla and Heuegovina, the seruices are provided by Deloitte Ltd. and Deloltte Advlsory Seruices Ltd. oolntly referred to as "Deloitte Bosnia and Hezegovlna")
which are affiliates of Deloitte Central Europe Holdings Limited. Deloitte Bosnia and Hezegovina is one of the leading professional serulces organizations in the
country providing services in audlt, tax, ccnsulting, financial advisory and legal seruices through over 60 national and specialized expatrlate professionals.

@ 2019 Deloitte Bosnia and Hezegovina
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Key Audit Matters

1. lmpairment of carrying value of loans and receivables

Key audit matter How the key audit matter was addressed in the
audit

The lnternational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) issued IFRS 9 - "Financial lnstruments"
which replaces "lAS 39 - Financial lnstruments" as
of the date of its effectiveness on 1 January 2018.

The key changes arising from adoption of IFRS 9
are that the Bank's credit losses are now based on
expected losses rather than an incurred loss model,
and the change in the classification and
measurement of the Bank's financial assets and
liabilities, which are detailed in Note 2 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank's gross loans
and receivables amount to KM 234,483 thousand
and the related impairment allowances amount to
KM 36,357. The policy for impairment of loans and
receivables is presented in the accounting policies
in Note 2 (0 to the financial statements.

The Bank exercises signiflcant judgement using
subjective assumptions over both when and how
much to record as loan impairment, and estimation
of the amount of the impairment allowances for
loans and receivables. Because loans and
receivables form a major portion of the Bank's
assets, and due to the signiflcance of the judgments
used in classifying loans and receivables into
various stages stipulated in IFRS 9 and determining
related impairment requirements, this audit area is
considered a key audit risk.

Key areas of judgment included:

. The interpretation of the requirements to
determine impairment under application of IFRS
9, which is reflected in the Bank's expected
credit loss model.

o The identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality.

. Assumptions used in the expected credit loss
model such as the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash flows and
forward looking macroeconomic factors (e.9.
unemployment rates, interest rates, gross
domestic product growth, property prices).

. The need to apply additional overlays to reflect
current or future external factors that are not
appropriately captured by the expected credit
loss model.

With respect to classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liahilities, our audit
procedures comprised the following:

r We read the Bank's IFRS I based classification
and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities policy and ompared it with
the requirements of IFRS 9;

o We obtained an understanding and checked the
Bank's business model assessment and the test
on the contractual cash flows, which give rise to
cash flows that are "solely payments of principal
and interest" [SPPItest]; and

. We checked the appropriateness of the opening
balance adjustments.

With respect to impairment methodology, our audit
procedures comprised the following:

r We read the Bank's IFRS I based impairment
provisioning policy and compared it with the
requirements of IFRS 9;

o We gained understanding of the Bank's key
credit processes comprising granting and
monitoring, and tested operating effectiveness of
key controls over these processes;

o We assessed the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of relevant controls over
the:

a. Data used to determine the impairment
reserve, including transactional data
captured at loan origination, ongoing
internal credit quality assessments, storage
of date and interfaces to the expected
credit loss model.

b. Expected credit loss model, including
model build and approval, ongoing
monitoring/validation, model governance
and mathematical accuracy.

. For exposures determined to be individually
impaired, we tested a sample of loans and
receivables and examined management's
estimate of future cash flows, assessed their
reasonableness and checked the resultant
impairment calculations; and

. For provision against exposures classified as
Stage 1 and Stage 2, we obtained an
understanding of the Bank's impairment
methodology, assessed the reasonableness of
the underlying assumptions and the sufficiency
of the data used by the management.
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Key audit matters (continued)

1. lmpairment of carryinq value of loans and receivables

Key audit matter How the key audit matter was addressed in the
audit
. We checked the appropriateness of the

determination of significant increase in credit risk
and the resultant basis for classification of
exposures into various stages;

. For a sample of exposures, we checked the
appropriateness of the Bank's staging;

o We checked and understood the key data
sources and assumptions for data used in the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models used by the
Bank to determine impairment allowances;

o For forward looking assumptions used by the
Bank's management in its ECL calculations, we
held discussions with management and
corroborated the assumptions using publicly
available information;

. For a sample of exposures, we checked the
appropriateness of determining Exposure at
Default, including the consideration of
prepayments and repayments in the cash flows
and the resultant arithmetical calculations;

. For Probability of Default (PD) used in the ECL
calculations, we checked the Through the Cycle
(TfC) PDs calculation and checked the
appropriateness of development of PDs at a
point in time (PlT);

o We checked the calculation of the Loss Given
Default (LGD) used by the Bank in the ECL
calculations, including the appropriateness of
the use of collateral and the resultant
arithmetical calculations;

. We checked the completeness of loans and
receivables, off-balance sheet items, and other
financial assets included in the ECL calculations
as of 31 December 2018; We understood the
theoretical soundness and tested the
mathematical integrity of the models;

o For data from external sources, we understood
the process of choosing such data, its relevance
for the Bank, and the controls and governance
over such data;

o Where relevant, we used information system
specialists to gain comfort on data integrity;

o We checked consistency of various inputs and
assumptions used by the Bank's management to
determine impairment provisions; and

o We checked the appropriateness of the opening
balance adjustments.

We assessed the financial statement disclosures
arising on adoption of IFRS 9 to determine if they
were in accordance with the requirements of the
Standard.

Refer to the accounting policies, critical accounting
estimates and judgements, disclosures of loans and
receivables and credit risk management in Notes 2,
3, 14 and 25 to the financial statements.
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial

statements in accordance with the lnternational Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as the Management Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going Doncern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditc,r's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee lhat an audit conducted
in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professionaljudgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's and the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's and the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

a

a

a
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mafters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters comrnunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our independent auditor's report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sabina Softid.

Deloifte d.o.o.

Sead director and licensed auditor Sabina Softi6, and licensed auditor

Zmala od Bosne 12c

Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina

16 April 2019

a

loitte
d.o.o.

Zmaia od Bosne 12c
71000 Saraievo

lD: /t20004?380000
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of profit or loss

forthe yearended 31 December2018
(AIl amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless othenuise stated)

lnterest income

lnterest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income

Other operating income

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Administrative and other expenses

Operating expenses

Profit before impairment losses and provisions

lmpairment losses and provisions

Profit before tax

lncome tax

Notes

10

2018

8,963
(282\

2017

8,528
(e1)

4

5

8,681

1,629

8,437

1,6656

2317

1,629

300

1,665

10,610 10,333

8

9

(5,733)

(426)

(1,681)

(5,71e)

(467)

(1,556)

(7,840) (7,7421

2,770

(2,263\

2,591

(2,463)

507

2(e)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

128

Net profit for the year 007 128
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

Notes 2018

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income forthe year

:

Total comprehensive income for the year 507

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

2017

128507

128

:i

8
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Statement of financial position

as at December 201 8

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
31 December

2018

107,731

13,496

198,126

1 ,198
4,319

168

31 December
2017

89,797

13,619

194,889

528

4,619

145

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans to and receivables from banks

Loans to and receivables from customers

Other assets

Property and equipment

lntangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current accounts and deposits from customers
Borrowings

Provisions

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Registered capital

Retained earnings

Regulatory reserves for credit losses

Totalequity

Total liabilities and equity

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

325,038 303,597

142,116

1,866

3,1 15

9 029

156,126 127,553

116,783

2,282

1,070

7,418

22 163,615

(2,760)

8,057

163,615

4,372

8,057

168,912 176,044

325,038

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

303,597
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and arnortisation

lmpairment losses and provisions, net

Net interest income

Changes in:
Net decrease / (increase) in obligatory reserve with the Central
Bank

Net increase in given loans and receivables

Net (increase) / decrease in other assets

Net decrease in current accounts and deposits from customers

Net decrease in other liabilities

lnterest received

lnterest paid

Net cash from operating activities

lnvesting activities
Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Financial activities
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash used in financial activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Gash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2018

507

426

2,263

(8,681)

2017

128

467

2,463

(8,437)

(5,485)

123

(9,298)

(477)

25,333

(118)

(5,379)

(4,576)

(14,638)

227

26,346

(e,833)

10,078

8,714

(282)

(7,853)

8,867

(e1)

18,510 923

(50)

(1 05)

(205)

(6)

(155)

(416)

(416)

17,934

89,797

107,731

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(2111

(753)

(753)

(411

89,838

89,797
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

Registered
capital

Regulatory
reserves for

credit
losses

Retained
earnings Total

{75,916As at 1 January 2017

Net profit for the year

Other comp rehe nsive i ncome

Total comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2017

Effect of IFRS 9 application
Note 2)

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total compre hensive i ncome

As at31 December2018

163,615 9,057 4,244

128 128

128 128

163,615 8,057 4,372 176,044

(7 63e)

507

(7,63e)

507

507 507

163,615 8,057 (2,7601 168,912

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL

History and incorporation

The Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina (the "Bank") was established by the Law on

the Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina ("Official Gazette of Federation of Bosnia and

Herzegovina", no. 37108). The Bank is headquartered in lgmanska 1, Sarajevo. The Bank is in 100% ownership

of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina.

ln compliance with the Law on the Development Bank and the Statute of the Bank, bodies of the Bank are: the

Assembly (consisting of the Government of FB|H), the Supervisory Board, the Management Board and the

Audit Board.

As of 31 December 2018, the Bank had branch offices in Mostar, Biha6, Zenica, Ora5je, Tuzla and Livno.

Principalactivities of the Bank

The goals of the Bank are encouragement of economic development and overall social development and the

encouragement of sustainable growth on the territory of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina, relating to the

financial and general social goals defined by the Law on the Development Bank.

Corporate loan and guarantee approvals are the key activities of the Bank either directly or through other banks,

in order to support the local economy, regional development and employment. The Bank performs credit

operations in the name and on behalf of the Bank (from capital, collected deposits and borrowings), as well as

in the name and on behalf of the Federation of BiH, on which behalf it manages its domestic and foreign funds

aimed for development projects, as well as receives cash deposits and takes loans, as a function of financing

development projects.

Management Bodies of the Bank

Supervisory Board:
lgor Zivko
Bo2o Vukoja
Zvonko Landeka
Asim Omani6
AmirAvdi6
Edin Bandi6
Dino Had2iali6

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Acting Member

-1

I

,..1

I

Management Board:
Salko Selman
Marijan Or5oli6

Senija Bubi6

Mersiha Slipidevi6

Dalibor Milinkovi6

Audit Board:
Drago Novakovi6
Fatima ObhodZa5
Haladin Salihovi6
DZelmina Huremovi6
Suada lsakovi6

President of the Management Board
Vice President of the Management Board
Acting Executive Director for Operations Support
(since 26 February 2018)
Acting Executive Director for Risk Management
(since 26 February 2018)
Acting Executive Director for Projects and Development
(since 26 February 2018)

Chairman
Vice-Chairwoman
Member
Member
Member

Term of the Audit Board expired on 4 December 2018.
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL (CONTTNUED)

The Supervisory Board, as a control body, has a significant role in overseeing the Bank's operations and

representing the owner's interests; together with the members of the Management Board of the Bank, the

Supervisory Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with statutory

provisions.

Assembly of the Bank

ln April 2018, the Assembly of the Bank adopted the Decision on identifying the amount of profit of the Bank

for 2016 and Decision on adoption of the operating plan and program of the Bank for 2017.

On its meeting held in July 2018, the Assembly of the Bank adopted the Report on operations of the

Development Bank of FBiH with accompanying financial statements, internal and external audit reports, report

on Supervisory Board and Audit Board operations for 2017. On the same meeting, the Assembly of the Bank

adopted the Decision on the amount and allocation of profit for 2017, and the Decision on adoption of the

operating plan and program of the Bank for 2018.

Superuisory Board

According to the Law on the Development Bank of FBiH, the Supervisory Board of the Bank consists of the

Chairman and six members, which are appointed and dismissed by the Assembly. ln addition, the

aforementioned is defined by the Statute of the Development Bank of FB|H as well and by the adopted

Rulebook on Functioning of the Supervisory Board of the Development Bank of FBiH (February 2010).

ln April 2018, the seventh member of the Supervisory Board was appointed by the Assembly of the Bank, so

the Supervisory Board operates in its fullcomposition of totalseven members (including the Chairman), which

is in accordance with the stated Law, the Statute and the adopted Rulebook.

ln May 2018, the Supervisory Board adopted the Financial statement of the Development Bank of FBiH and

lndependent auditor's report for 2017, as well as the Report on operations for the first quarter of 20'18. On the

same date, the new Rulebook with lnternal organization and Organizational scheme and Workplace

systematization of the Development Bank of FBiH was adopted.

Management Board of the Bank

Pursuant to the Law on the Development Bank of FB|H and the Statute of the Bank, the Management Board

comprises the President of the Management Board, Vice President of the Management Board and executive

directors, appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board.

According to the organizational scheme adopted in 2018, the Management Board of the Bank comprises:

President, Vice President and functions of three executive directors - Executive Director for Operations

Support, Executive Director for Risk Management, and Executive Director for Projects and Development.

Secretary of the Bank

The Bank has no Secretary of the Bank since 23 September 2017.

13



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(AII amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL (CONTTNUED)

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards

("lFRS') issued by the lnternationalAccounting Standards Board.

The Bank's financial statements were authorized for issue by the Management Board on 16 April 2019 for
submission to the Supervisory Board.

b) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which means that the Bank will be

able to realize its receivables and settle its liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

c) Basis of measurenrent

These financial statemen{s have been prepared on the historical or amortised cost basis.

d) Functionalandpresentationcurrency

The financial statements are presented in Convertible Marks ('KM'), which is the functional currency of the

Bank.

The Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina ("CBB|H" or "Central Bank") implemented a currency board

arrangement aligning BAM to EURO at an exchange rate of EUR 1: BAM 1.95583 throughout 2018 and 2018.

This is expected to continue in the foreseeable future.

e) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which they are revised and potentially in future periods if they affect them.

lnformation on areas with significant uncertainty in the estimates and criticaljudgements in applying accounting

policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements are

disclosed in Note 3.

14



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange profits and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

b) lnterest income and expense

lnterest income and expense are recognised in the income statement as they accrue using the effective interest

rate method. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows of financial assets or

liabilities over the life of financial instrument (or, if appropriate, a shorter period) to its ne: carrying value. ln the

calculation of effective interest rates the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms, but

not future credit losses.

Calculation of the effective interest rate includes all paid or received transaction costs, fees and points, which

are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include all incremental costs incurred directly

in connection with the issuance or acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities.

lnterest income and expense recognised in the income statement include interest on financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest rate method.

c) Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral part of the effective interest rate on a financial

asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Fee and commission income and expenses, reported as such, mainly comprise of fees related to agency

activities, the issuance of guarantees and letters of credit and other services and are recognised in the income

statement upon performance of the relevant service.

d) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.
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Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTTNUED)

e) lncome tax

According to Article 32 of the Law on Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina (Official

Gazette of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, No. 37108), the Bank is not subject to corporate income tax.

f) Financial instruments

Recognition

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets and financial liabilities

are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to a contract relating to a financial instrument.

Financial instruments are initially recognized at their fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition of financial assets or the formation of a financial liability (excluding financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the asset

or financial liability at initial recognition.

Classification and measurement

The Bank classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: cash and cash equivalents and

obligatory reserve with the CBBiH, loans and other receivables. The Bank classifies its financial liabilities in the

following categories: irreuccably approved borrowings, contracted undrawn borrowings, issued guarantees and

received loans.

Financial assets and other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value.

After initial recognition, loans and receivables and other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest rate method, or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or at

fair value through profit or loss (FWPL).

IFRS 9

Financial instruments - classification
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve at the CBB|H

Loans and receivables from banks

Loans and receivables from clients

Financial assets available for sale

Other financial assets

Other financial liabilities

Measurement category
Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

FWPL - fair value through profit or loss

FVOCI - fair value through other comprehensive income

Amortized cost

Amortized cost

Derecognition

IFRS 9 encompasses IAS 39 derecognition requirements for financial assets and financial liabilities with no

substantial changes. There is a certain immaterial impact on the Bank based on adoption of new provisions.

16
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for the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0 Financialinstruments(continued)

Derecog nition (continued)

The Bank derecognizes financial assets (in full or in part) when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instrument have expired or when it transfer rights to receive cash flows or when it commits to pay
received cash flows to a third party under a "rights transfe/'agreement, or (i) when it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to another business entity or (ii) when substantially all risks and benefits of
ownership are neither transferred nor retained, but control over assets is surrendered.

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities only when the financial liability ceases fo exist, i.e. when it is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. If the terms of a financial liability change, the Bank will cease recognizing
that liability and will instantaneously recognize a new financial liability, with new terms and conditions.

lmpairment of financial assets

lmpairment of financial assets is recognized on the basis of the expected credit loss model for assets that are
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model applies to debt instruments (such as bank deposits, loans, securities)
recorded at amortized cost or at fair value, contractual assets and credit liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

lmpairment losses for individual risks or portfolio risk provisions must be estimated for customers from all
segments and all such exposure types have to be taken into account.

The underlying principle of the expected credit loss model is to reflect the deterioration or improvement of the
credit quality of a financial instrument.

IFRS I expected credit loss model includes three stages, i.e. three levels of credit risK whereby the financial
asset moves through stages as it changes its credit quality.

Stage 1

Healthy portfolio

Stage 2
Significant increase of

credit risk

Stage 3
Problematic portfolio

Expected loss ln 12 month period ln the entire duration of
the loan

ln the entire duration of the
loan

Client is in default on any

lmpairment is done by applying the lnternal loan and other financial assets impairment methodology in

Criterion for
grouping and
determining risk
levels

Overdue s30 days by

IFRS counter

FBA classification <85%

Client is not in default on

any basis

Overdue >31 days <90

days by IFRS counter

FBA classification >85%

Deterioration of client's

position

Client is not in default on

any basis

Overdue >90 days by IFRS

counter

i.e.

basis

accordance with IFRS 9 ("Methodology")
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT AGCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

0 Financialinstruments(continued)

lmpairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of expected credit loss that is recognized depends on the degree of credit deterioration since the

initial recognition of the instrument.

There are two basics for calculating:

- 12-month ECL, which is applied on a group basis in Stage 1, and refers to all items untilthere is a

significant deterioration in credit quality

- Lifetime ECL, which is applied on a group basis in Stage 2, and on an individual basis in Stage 3, when

there is a significant increase in credit risk.

The Bank for each reporting period, i.e. at the end of each month, estimates whether there has been a

significant change (increase or decrease) of the credit risk from initial recognition and whether the credit

impairment of each financial instrument is identified for each portfolio subject to estimation in order to determine

whether the calculation of impairment is applied on a 12-month basis or lifetime basis for a financial instrument.

At the same time, the method of calculating interest income, which depends on the level of credit risk in which

financial instrument is located, is also estimated.

For loans classified in Stages 1 and 2, interest is charged to gross book value, while in Stage 3 (the default

status on any basis) interest is calculated off-balance sheet and recognized in revenue only after the payment

has been made.

lmpairment is carried out on a monthly basis, during the accounting periods and at the end of the year at the

balance sheet date, and the impairment effects are reported on each placement individually in the statement

of financial position and statement of profit and loss.

The Bank also accounts for allowances in accordance with the relevant regulations of the Banking Agency of

Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina ("Agency" or "FBA"). Relevant placements are classified into appropriate

groups for the Agency's purposes in accordance with the above regulations depending on the dates overdue,

the financial position of the debtors and collateral instruments and are booked in accordance with the required

percentage of provisions. The general allowances in accordance with these regulations are also calculated at

the rate of 2o/o on all exposures that are not specifically impaired.

Allowances calculated in the manner described in the previous paragraph ("FBA allowances") are not

recognized in these financial statements of the Bank. lf impairment for contingent losses calculated in

accordance with the Agency's regulations are higher than the impairment losses calculated in accordance with

IFRS requirements, the above difference is shown as a reconciliation when calculating capital adequacy.

Fair value measurement principle

Specific financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, balances with the Central

Bank and current accounts with other banks.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

f) Financialinstruments(continued)

Specific financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents exclude the compulsory minimum reserve with the Central Bank as these funds are
not available for the Bank's day-to-day operations. The compulsory minimum reserve rvith the Central Bank is
a required reserve to be held by all commercial banks licensed in Bosnia and Hezegovina.

Obligatory reserve with the Centrat Bank

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank is classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized cost
less impairment losses.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances to banks and customers are presented at amortised cost net of impairment allowances to
reflect the estimated recoverable amounts.

Borrowings

lnterest-bearing borrowings are classified as other financial liabilities and are recognised initially at fair value,
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and redemption value being recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Current accounts and deposits from customers

Current accounts and deposits are classified as other liabilities and are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs and subsequently stated at their amortised cost using the effective interest method.

g) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent cost is
included in net book value or is accounted for as separate assets only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day-
to-day repairs and maintenance are recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on all property and equipment except for land and assets in the course of construction
on a straight-line basis at prescribed rates designed to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The depreciation rates used by the Bank are as follows:

Buildings 3yo
Furniture and equipment:

- Furniture and other office equipment 20%-33,330/o
- Mobile phones 50o/oVehicles 2Oo/o

Leasehold improvements 20o/o
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2. SUMMARY OF StGN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

g) Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount, and are

included in the income statement as other income or operating expense.

h) lntangible assets

lntangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. The cost

includes all expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Amortization is provided on all intangible assets except assets in the course of construction on a straight line

basis at prescribed rates designed to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The

following estimated useful lives are used:

Software 2Oo/o

Amortization method, useful lives and net values are reassessed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting

date.

i) lmpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating

unit exceeds its recoverable amount, impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their value in use and fair value less cost to sell. ln

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is

determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment

loss had been recognised.

j) Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

On behalf of its employees, the Bank pays pension and health insurance which is calculated on the gross salary

paid, as well as tax on salaries which are calculated on the net salary paid. The Bank pays the above

contributions into the state pension and health funds according to statutory rates during the course of the year.

ln addition, meal allowances, transport allowances and vacation bonuses are paid in accordance with local

legislation. These expenses are recorded in the income statement in the period in which the salary expense is

incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

j) Employee benefits

S h ort-te rm be n efits (conti n u e d)

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income

statement as incurred.

Lo n g-te rm b e n ef its : ret i re m e nt sev e ra n ce p ay m e nt s

According to the local legislation the Bank pays to its employees retirement severance benefits upon retirement

in an amount of six employee's salaries received in the last six months or six average salaries at the Federation

of BiH level in the last six months, depending on what is more favourable for the employee.

The obligation and costs of these benefits are determined by using a projected unit credit method. The projected

unit credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of oenefit entitlement and

measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value

of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is similar to the estimated interest rate on government

bonds.

k) Provisions for liabilities and expenses

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made, or as required by law in the

case of provisions for unidentified impairment of off-balance-sheet credit risk exposures.

Provisions for liabilities and charges are maintained at the level that the Bank's management considers

sufficient for absorption of incurred losses. The management determines the sufficiency of provisions on the

basis of insight into specific items, current economic circumstances, risk characteristics of certain transaction

categories, as well as other relevant factors.

Provisions are released only for such expenditure in respect of which provisions are recognised at inception. lf
the outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligations is no longer probable, the provision is reversed.

l) Registered capital

Registered capital consists of 100o/o share of the Federation of BiH.

Regulatory reseve for credit /osses

The regulatory reserve for credit losses represents the surplus of impairment allowances calculated in
accordance with regulations as prescribed by the Agency over impairment allowances recognised in

accordance with IFRS. The reserve is presented directly within equity (as a non-distributable reserve) and until

2012 any increase of the surplus was covered by transfers from retained earnings, after approval by

shareholders.

Prior to 2012, the need for transfers from retained earnings to an earmarked reserve w;thin equity (regulatory

reserve for credit losses) was calculated for the whole credit-risk portfolio on a net basis, thereby taking into

account both instances where application of Agency regulations would have resulted in a higher provision and

instances where the application of Agency regulations would have resulted in a lower provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNtFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CIES (CONTTNUED)

l) Registered capital

Regulatory reseve for credit /osses (continued)

However, from 2012, banks are required to calculate the requirement for regulatory reserves for credit losses

taking into account only instances where higher provisions would have resulted from the application of the

Agency rules. Retroactive application of this change in Agency rules is not required.

Based on the Decision on capital calculation for banks, adopted by the Agency in November 2017, replacing

the Decision on Minimum Standards for Capital Management and Capital Hedging adopted in February 2013,

the surplus of regulatory reserves is not shown as the movement of reserves within the capital, but is solely

used when calculating capital adequacy. Therefore, the reserves shown in the financial statements as at and

for the year ended 31 December 2012 remained unchanged until 31 December 2018.

On 8 November 2018, the Agency issued a Decision on conditions for incorporation of created reserves fro

credit losses into regular core capital of a bank, according to which banks are allowed to make regulatory

reserves for credit losses generated from profits transferred to equity or retained earnings and reserves.

The Supervisory Board of the Bank has received a Proposal of the Decision on inclusion of formed reserves

for credit losses into the Bank's regular core capitalfor consideration and determination thereof, and submission

to the Assembly of the Bank for adoption. Until the date of issuance of this report, the Bank's Assembly has not

adopted the decision in question.

m) Off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liabilities

ln the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into credit-related commitments which are recorded in off-

balance-sheet accounts and primarily comprise of guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments.

Such financial commitments are recorded in the Bank's statement of financial position if and when they become

payable.

n) Funds managed for and on behalf of third parties

The Bank manages significant funds for and on behalf of the Government of the FB|H (Ministry of Finance,

Ministry of Development, Entrepreneurship and Craft, Ministry of Agriculture, Water Management and Forestry,

Ministry of Displaced Persons and Refugees, Ministry of Environment and Tourism and Ministry of Energy,

Mining and lndustry) and the Federal Employment Agency. lncome and expenses from such operations are

charged to the principal and the Bank does not bear any liabilities and risks. For these services, the Bank

charges fees. For details refer to Note 24.

o) Standards and interpretations effective in the current period

The following new amendments to the existing standards issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards

Board (IASB) are effectiva for the current reporting period:

o IFRS l5 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" and further amendments (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" - the standard is effect for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model that applies to revenue from contracts

with customers with limited exceptions. Based on the conducted analysis no significant impact was

detected by adopting IFRS 15 in current economic and financial volumes on the financial statements of

the Bank.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

o) Standards and interpretations effective in the current period (continued)

o Amendments to IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment" - Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2O1g),

' Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 due to "lmprovements to IFRSs (cycle 2014-2016)" resulting from
the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and tAS 28) primarity with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording (amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 2g areto be applied for annual
periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2O1g),

o Amendments to IAS 40 "lnvestment Property" - Transfers of lnvestment property (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2O1g),

r IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration" (effective for annual periods
beginning on orafter 1 January 2O1g).

The adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations has not led to any material changes in the
Bank's accounting policies.

p) Standards and interpretation in issue not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new standards, amendments to existing
standards and new interpretation were in issue, but not yet effective:

o Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annuar periods beginning on or after 1 January 201g),

o IFRS 16 "Leases" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January z1lg),

IFRS 16: "Leases" (etfectiveforannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2O1g)- IFRS 16 establishes
principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both contractual parties, i.e.
the buyer ("lessee") and supplier ("lessor"). The Standard requires lessees to account for all leases under a
single balance sheet model in a similar way to financing leases in accordance with IAS 17, with certain
exceptions. The lessor's accounting remains largely unchanged.

The Standard defines a unified model for lease accounting at lessees, prescribes the obligation of the lessee
to present assets and liabilities on all leases, except for leases for a period of 12 months or less or a low lease
value. Lessors willstill classify leases into operating orfinance leases, with IFRS 16 introducing an approach
that is not substantially different from the one in the previous IAS 17.

Upon commencement of the lease, the lessee recognizes the right to use property and the lease liability. The
right to use property is measured for the first time in the amount of the lease liability that is increased for any
direct costs of the lessee. lt is also possible to calculate adjustments based on lease incentives, payments at
the time or prior to the beginning of the lease, and the obligation to bring the lease object into original condition
and similar.
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (GONTTNUED)

p) Standards and interpretation in issue not yet adopted (continued)

According to the cost method, the right to use property is measured at cost less depreciation, i.e. accumulated

amortization. The lease liability is initially measured at the amount of the present value of the lease payments

over the lease period determined by the lease rate if it is currently possible to determine it. Conversely, the

lessee is obliged to apply an incremental charge rate.

Variable lease payments related to an index or rate used for initial measurement of a lease liability are initially

measured using that index or the rate at the beginning of the lease. Amounts that are expected to be paid by

the lessee are also included in the guarantee for the remainder of the value.

Variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liability are recognized in profit

or loss for the period in which the event or condition is triggered as a trigger, except for costs that are included

in the carrying amount of another asset under another standard.

The lease liability is later measured in such a way as to include changes:

. lease periods (using the adjusted rate for the current value);

. estimates related to the purchase option (using the adjusted discount rate to the present value);

r the amounts expected to be payable on the basis of the guarantees for the outstanding value (using

the same, i.e. unchanged default rate), i.e.

. future lease payments resulting from the change in the index or the rate used to determine the amount

of these payments (using the same, unchanged, floating rate to present value).

The re-measurement results are calculated as the adjustment of assets with the right to use. Lease changes

may also be a trigger for re-measuring lease commitments, except for changes that need to be accounted for

as separate leases.

According to the conducted assessment, the Group reviewed the lease contracts and calculated the effects of

the flrst application of the classification of contracts under IFRS 16. The total estimated effect of the right to use

assets is KM 35 thousand or 0.2o/o of the total assets of the Bank, and it results in increase of total assets and

total liabilities of the Bank in the stated amount.

. Amendments to IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Long-term lnterests in

Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. Amendments to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. Amendments to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. IFRS 17 "lnsurance Contracts" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021),
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

p) standards and interpretation in issue not yet adopted (continued)

o Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates
and Joint Ventures" - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate or Joint
Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the research project on the
equity method has been concluded),

o Amendments to IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Long-term lnterests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2o1g),

o Amendments to various standards due to "lmprovements to IFRSs (cycle 2015-2017)" resulting from the
annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and tAS 23) primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019),

o IFRIC 23 "uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019).

o IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January2019).

The Bank has elected not to adopt these standards, revisions and interpretations in acjvance of their effective
dates' The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and interpretations will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the period of initial application.
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2. SUMMARY OF StGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments

ln accordance with the Decision on the lssuance and Application of lnternational Financial Reporting Standards

("Official Gazette of the Federation of BiH", no. 55117), application of the lnternational Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS) 9 - "Financial lnstruments" is obligatory in preparation of financial statements which refer to

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Since 1 January 2018, the Bank has applied IFRS 9 - "Financial lnstruments", and has not restated comparative

data for 2017, as the Standard allows. Accordingly, the current period from 1 January to 31 December 2018 is

based on IFRS I and the results for 2017 and for the period from 1 January to December 31,2017 are based

on the lnternationalAccounting Standard (lAS) 39 "Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement", and

IAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", thus comparative data for 2017 are not

comparable to the information presented in 2018.

IFRS 9 requirements for impairment are based on the expected credit loss model and replace the current IAS

39 model of incurred losses.

The effects of applying IFRS 9 are charged to retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018 and amount

to KM 7,639 thousand.

The Bank has adopted a new lnternal Methodology for impairment of loans and other financial assets in

accordance with IFRS 9 ino. 4067-ll / 18 of 8 May 2018), which defines the general principles and processes

of classification and measurement of financial instruments and establishes clear methods and processes for

impairment of loans and other financial assets at the Bank.

Balance items subject to measurement are valued using the amortization cost method. Outstanding items that

are subject to measurernent are: guarantees, letters of credit, unused amounts of revolving loans, unused

contracted credits. The so-called "Other assets" are also subject to classification, consisting of various

receivables from legal and natural persons that are not subject to credit-guarantee transactions.

lmpairment calculations for loans and other financial assets are carried out on a monthly basis.

Financialassets

Recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, at the moment of acquisition or approval.

Busrness models

All financial assets are grouped into business models that indicate the way of managing a group of financial

assets as a whole in order to achieve a certain business objective and define the way in which financial assets

are expected to generate cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnsbuments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Busrness models (contin ued)

The Management of the Bank has chosen a business model that aims to hold assets solely for the purpose of
collecting contractual cash flows, which combines all the financial assets held for the purpose of charging the
contracted cash flows throughout the life of the financial instrument.

The business model for keeping assets for collection passes the sPPl test (solely Payments of principal and
lnterest, the "SPPI test"), and the following financial assets are allocated to this model:

- cash and cash on bank transaction account,
- current account and obligatory reserve with the CBBH
- loans

- other receivables (other assets)

The underlying risk in this business model is credit risk.

SPPI fesf

The SPPI test is a test of contractual cash flows from the aspect of paying only principal and interest on the
outstanding principal amount, one of the criteria for classifying financial assets in a particular category of
measurement. The SPPI test is conducted to determine whether the interest on the outstanding principal
reflects only the time value of money, or includes credit risk, other basic lending risks, lending costs and profit
margins.

SPPI test is performed:

- for each financial asset, allocated to a business model whose purpose is to hold a financial asset for
the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows,

- for each financial asset in cases where the original asset is significanfly modified and therefore
recognized as new asset

- when introducing new credit products to determine in advance the eligibility of the credit conditions
considered in relation to the need to subsequently monitor the value of any financial assets that would
arise from them.

C lassifi catio n of fi na nc ial assefs

The Bank classifies its financial assets on the basis of allocation to the business model and the Sppl test as
assets subsequently measured at amortization cost if both conditions are met:

- financial assets are allocated to a business model whose purpose is to hold assets for the payment
of contractual cash flows and

- the SPPI test is satisfied - for financial assets, cash flows are defined which represent only the
payment of principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial asset has been acqui,"ed. The Management
determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition and reviews this classification at each
reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Reclassifi-cation of financhl assefs

ln case of change in the business model of financial asset management, a reclassification will be made of all

financial assets affected by the reclassification. Reclassification will take place prospectively, from the date of

the reclassification, i.e. from the first day of the next accounting period, whereby not modifying previously

recognized profit, loss or interest.

Impairment of financial assefs

lmpairment of financial assets is recognized on the basis of the expected credit loss model for assets that are

subsequently measured at amortized cost.

lmpairment is carried out on a monthly basis, during the accounting periods and at the end of the year at the

balance sheet date, and the impairment effects are reported on each placement individually in the statement

of financial position and statement of profit and loss.

IFRS 9 model of expected credit loss includes three stages, i.e. three levels of credit risk, whereby the financial

asset moves through stages as it changes its credit quality.

lmpairment is carried out using the lnternal Methodology for impairment of loans and other financial assets in

accordance with IFRS 9 ("Methodology").

On the date of first application of IFRS 9, the asset is allocated in three stages or three levels of credit risk:

- Stage 1 - financial assets without significant credit risk (the client is not in default status, it is overdue

by the IFRS counter less than or equal to 30 days and the FBA risk rating is less than or equal to B

5To)

- Stage 2 - The client is not in default status, it is overdue by the IFRS counter more than or equal to

31 days and less than or equal to 90 days, and the FBA risk classiflcation is greater than B5%,

deteriorating the client's position.

- Stage 3 - The client is in default status on any basis, it is overdue by the IFRS counter more than 90

days

At the following reporting dates, all financial assets are allocated according to the identified significant increase

in credit risk and credit rating criteria in 3 stages:

Stage 1 -financial instruments with low credit risk are allocated to this level, namely exposure to Bosnia and

Herzegovina, Entities and Brdko District, and to lower levels (cantons, cities, municipalities) and exposure to

the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina.

Client's financial instruments are not considered as low credit risk instruments only because of the value of the

collateral instruments because they are not considered as instruments of low credit risk without such collateral.

Starting from default status as the sole criterion, the Bank distinguishes two different approaches to impairment:

- individualand

- group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2'1' changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financiat assefs (continued)

For financial instruments of customers allocated to stage 1, impairment losses are calculated on a group basis
in the amount of 12-month expected credit losses.

Stage 2 - clients' financial instruments with significant increase of credit risk are allocated to this risk level.

For clients'financial instruments in stage 2, impairment losses are calculated on a group basis in the amount
of lifetime expected credit losses.

Stage 3 - clients'financial instruments in default status - include clients with objective evidence of impairment
of the financial instrument.

For clients' financial instruments in Stage 3, impairment losses are calculated on an individual basis in the
amount of lifetime expected credit losses.

Exposure to the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina and other banks in the country and abroad is
multiplied by the annual PD published by some of the credit rating agencies (e.g. Moody,s) or, if not available,
by expertly determined pD of 1% and an experfly estabtished LGD varue of 0.45.

As for other receivables (other assets) it is not practicable to estimate credit risk and expected credit losses,
the Bank has decided to apply a matrix to determine impairment, with fixed rates of impairment depending on
the number of days overdue or maturity overdue.

Details of the Methodology are listed in Note 25. Financial risk management, Note 25.1. credit risk.

Derecognition and contract modification

IFRS I includes the requirements of lAs 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities without
any substantive changes. There is a certain immaterial significant impact on the Bank on the basis of adopting
new provisions.

Financial assets are derecognised when:
- The contractual rights to receive cash flows expire; or
- The Bank transfers the right to receive cash flows or undertakes to pay the received cash flows to a

third party through a ,,transfer 
of rights', agreement;

- or (i) any significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property have been transferred or (ii)
significant risks and rewards associated with ownership of assets have been neither transferred or
retained, but control over assets has been transferred.

contractual changes arising as a result of negotiations with the debtor can lead to two types of modification of
the initially contracted cash flows.

Modification of financial assets

Modification of a financial asset is any change in the contractual provisions that results in the conversion of
contracted cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF STGN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|C|ES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Modification of financial assefs (continued)

ln the event that the modification is not significant, the amendment to the contractual provisions does not result

in derecognition of the financial asset but a new gross carrying amount is determined as the present value of

the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate (ElR).

ln this case, the difference between the original gross carrying amount before the modification and gross

carrying amount determined on the basis of modified cash flows after the change is recognized in profit or loss

as income or loss.

ln the event that the modification of a financial asset is significant, the financial asset is derecognised prior to

the modification and the modified financial asset is re-recognized as a "new" financial asset and a new EIR is

established. The date of initial recognition shall be deemed to be the date of modification of the contractual

provisions. lmpairment on re-recognized financial assets is recognized in the amount of expected credit losses

for lifetime credit losses.

lf it is determined that the modifled financial asset at initial recognition is individually impaired for credit losses,

in that case the financial asset is recognized as purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (POCI

assets), and the same is determined by the EIR adjusted for the credit risk.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financral assefs (POCI assefs)

POCI assets are financial assets where, at initial recognition, there is objective evidence of individual

impairment for credit losses because credit risk is created or issued, or property purchased at a discount of at

least 5%.

At initial recognition, expected credit losses are included in the fair value of the asset, so the impairment

allowances are equal to zero.

At the reporting date only cumulative changes in expected credit losses that arise after initial recognition of

POCI assets are recognized as allowances for impairment of POCI assets,.

For the purposes of calculating impairment, lifetime credit losses are recognized.
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2. SUMMARY OF StcN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnsFuments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financiat instruments

IAS 39 IFRS 9

Cash and cash
equivalents
Obligatory reserve at the
Central Bank of BiH
Loans and receivables
from banks
Loans and receivables
from customers
Financial assets available
for sale

Other assets

Other liabilities

Measurement
category

amortized cost

amortized cost

amortized cost

amortized cost
FVOCI(available

for sale)

amortized cost

amortized cost

Net amount
31 December

2017

OOO KM

89,797

13,619

194,889

Measurement
category

amortized cost

amortized cost

amortized cost

amortized cost

FVOCI

amortized cost

amortized cost

Net amount
I January

2018

OOO KM

89,393

13,558

189,1 13

10

513

11,251

10

518

12,644
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Positions in the Statement of financial position

Reclassifications

Cash and cash equivalents
Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS I (Note 11)

Closing balance under IFRS 9
Obligatory reserve at the Central Bank
of BiH

Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS I (Note 12)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Loans and receivables from banks

Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS I
Closing balance under IFRS 9

Loans and receivables from clients
Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS I (Note 14)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Financial assets available for sale

Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS I
Closing balance under IFRS I (FVOCI)

Other assets
Opening balance under IAS 39

Re-measurement under IFRS 9 (Note 15)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Balance
as at 31

December
20f 7 (rAs

39) Reclassification
Subsequent

measurement

Balance
asati

January
2018

(|FRS e)

89,797

13,619

1,534

194,889

10

518

(404)

(61)

(5,776)

89,393

13,558

1,534

189,113

10

513

(5)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)

2'1' Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve at the
Central Bank of BiH
Loans and receivables from
banks
Loans and receivables from
clients
Financial assets available for
sale (FVOCI)

lmpairment of other assets
Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Provisions under
IAS 39 (balance as

at 31 December
20171

in KM 000 Reclassification

1,534

30,600

' Subsequent
measurement

(balance as at 1

January 2018)
in KM 000

404

Provisions
under IFRS 9

404

1,412

119

61

1,534

36,376

1,412

124

61

5,776

5

1,732 1,393

Total 34.004 41,643 7,639

The Bank carried out the calculation of impairment of risk assets and provisions contingent liabilities (off-
balance sheet) in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018, and reported a negative effect within the
capital positions (in terms of unallocated profit and capital reserves, according to the Bmking Agency of FBiH),
in the amount of KM 7,639 thousand (on-balance KM 6,246 thousand and off-balance KM 1,396 thousand).
The above-mentioned effect is expressed as the uncovered loss transferred from the crevious years, i.e. the
deductible item from the base capital, and decreased for the stated amount.

Below is an overview of the effects of applying IFRS I on individual balances and off-belance sheet items, on
impairment or balance (for certain positions that are subject to impairment under IFRS g).

339
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2. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTC|ES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Changes of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans balance

As at 31
December
2017
As at 31
December
2018

Loans to
banks

Long-term
loans

Short-term
loans

Regular Penalty
interest interest

990 208

Total

3 227,023

Fees

1,407 223,273 1,142

1,407 223.273 1,142 990 208 3 227,023

lmpairment
As at 31
December
2017
Effect of IFRS I
application
(Note 14)
As at 31
December
2018

Loans to
banks

Long-term
loans

Short-term
loans

Regular
interest

347

29

Penalty
interest

147

6

1,407 29,638

5,737

593

4

Fees Total

2 32,134

5,776

1,407 35,375 597 376 153 2 37,910

As at 1 January 2018, by application of IFRS 9, impairment of total loans (including loan principal, interest and

fees) was increased by l(ItI 5,776 thousand compared to the impairment allowance in IAS 39.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnslruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Balance of cash and cash equivalents and obligatory
reserve at the GBBH

As at 31 December 2017

As at I January 2018

Gash and cash
equivalents

89,797

Obligatory
reserye at

the CBBIH Total

1q619 103,416

89,797 13,619 103,416

Gash and cash
equivalents

404

Obligatory
reserve at

the CBB|H

61

lmpairment

As at 31 December 2017

Effect of IFRS I application (Note 15)

As at 1 January 2018

As at 31 December 2017

As at 1 January 2018

lmpairment

As at 31 December 2017

Effect of IFRS I application (Note 15)

As at 1 January 2018

Total

465

404 61 465

By applying IFRS I as at 1 January 2018, impairment of cash and cash equivalents and obligatory reserve at
the CBB|H amounts to KM 465 thousand. These financial assets did not have any impairment under IAS 39.

Balance of other assets
Acquired

assets
available for

sale Other assets

637

total

1,422 2,059

1,422 637 2,059

Acquired
assets available

for sale

1,412

Other assets

119

5

total

1,531

5

1,412 124 1,536

By applying IFRS 9, impairment of other assets was increased for KM S thousand compared to impairment
under IAS 39.
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2. SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtctES (CONTTNUED)

2.1. Ghanges of accounting policies due to application of IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Approved
undrawn

loansOff-balance sheet

As at 31 December 2017

As at 1 January 2018

Guarantees

10,893

Total

12,9832,090

10,893 2,090 12,983

Approved
lmpairment undrawn

Guarantees loans Total

Asat3l December2Ol7 218 121 339

Effect of IFRS 9 application (Note 20) 1 ,380 13 1,393

As at 1 January 2018 1,598 134 ',,732

By applying IFRS I, impairment of off-balance sheet items was increased for KM 1,393 thousand compared to

impairment under IAS 37.

Total effect of IFRS 9 application, including balance on-balance and off-balance exposures, amounts to KM

7,639 thousand.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions about uncertain events, including estimates and assumptions
about the future. such accounting assumptions and estimates are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors such as the expected flow of future events that can be reasonably
assumed in existing circumstances, but nevertheless necessarily represent sources of estimation uncertainty.
The estimation of impairment losses in the Bank's credit risk portfolio represents the major source of estimation
uncertainty. This and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a sign,ficant risk of causing a
possible material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

lmpairment /osses on loans and receivabtes and provrsions for off-balance-sfeef exposure

The Bank monitors the creditworthiness of its customers on an ongoing basis. The need for impairment of the
Bank's on and off-balance sheet exposure to credit risk is assessed on a monthly basis.

lmpairment losses are made mainly against the carrying value of loans to banks and customers (as disclosed
in Notes 13 and 14) and as provisions for liabilitiesand charges arising from off-balance exposure to customers,
mainly in the form of guarantees and letters of credit (as disclosed in Note 20).

The Bank estimates impairment losses in cases where it judges that the observable data indicates the likelihood
of a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the asset or portfolio of assets. Such evidence
includes delinquency in payments or other indications of financial difficulty of borrowers and adverse changes
in the economic conditions in which borrowers operate or in the value or enforceability of security, where these
changes can be correlated with defaults.

Summary of impairment allowances
31 December

2017

'000 KM

lmpairment allowance for balance sheet exposures,
including cash and other assets
Provisions for off-balance sheet exposures

Note

11,12,13,
14,15

20

31 December
2018

,000 KM

39,010

2,337
33,665

339

41,347 34,004
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3. GRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(coNTTNUED)

Impairment losses on loans and receivables and provisions for off-balance-sheet exposure
(continued)

Reg u I ato ry re q u i re me nts

The Agency is entitled to carry out regulatory inspections of the Bank's operations and to request changes to

the carrying values of assets and liabilities, in accordance with the underlying regulations.

ln addition to impairment allowances calculated and recognized in accordance with IFRS, the Bank also

calculates impairment losses in accordance with Agency regulations for capital adequacy calculation purposes

and regulatory reserves for credit losses.

The following table summarizes impairment allowances calculated in accordance with the Agency regulations.

Regulatory provisions as of 31 December 2018 are calculated in accordance with the new methodology (as

explained in Note 2 l).
Summary of impairment allowances 31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Provisions for balance-slreet exposure (Agency) 46,743 42,857

Provisions for off-balance-sheet exposure (Agency) 1 ,318 1 ,491

48,061 44,348

lmpairment allowances under IFRS 41,347 34,004
Negative difference between provisions for balance-sheet exposure
(Agency) and impairment allowance in accordance with IFRS 3,682 1,638
Positive difference between provisions for balance-sheet exposure
(Agency) and impairment allowance in accordance with IFRS 10,396 11,982

Missing reserves 2,339 3,925

Prior to 2012, any increase in allowance in accordance with the Agency regulations over amounts recognized

under IFRS were required to be transferred to regulatory reserves from profit or retained earnings, upon the

decision of the General Assembly. However, as explained in Note 2 (f), based on the new Decision issued by

the Agency in February 2013 any further shortfall in regulatory provisions will be adjusted as a deduction of

regulatory capital in the capital adequacy calculation without any transfer of this shortfall from retained earnings

to regulatory reserves for credit losses within equity.

As presented in the above table, total Agency provisions exceeded provisions recognized under IFRS by KM

10,396 thousand as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: KM 11,982 thousand). Out of this amount, KM

8,057 thousand has been recognized as a regulatory reserve for credit losses within equity as at 31 December

2018 (31 December 2017: KM 8,057 thousand). The remaining amount of KM 2,339 thousand, which

represents the current year shortfall, in line with the new Agency regulation, as explained above, will not be

transferred to the regulatory reserves for credit losses, but will be recorded as a reduction of regulatory capital

and is calculated only for regulatory reporting purposes.

On 8 November2018, theAgency issued a Decision on conditionsforincorporation of created reservesfro

credit losses into regular core capital of a bank, according to which banks are allowed to make regulatory

reserves for credit losses generated from profits transferred to equity or retained earnings and reserves.

Court proceedings

The Bank performs individual assessment of all court cases and on that basis determines the amount of

provisions.
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3. ZNAEAJNE RACUNOVODSTVENE PRoCJENE I KLJUENI IzVoRI PRoGJENE NEIzVJEsNosTI
(NASTAVAK)

Co u ft p roceed i n gs (co nti n ued)

As indicated in Note 20, the Bank provisioned KM 34 thousand, which is the amount that the Management

considered sufficient. Since the assessment is made for each case separately, it is not practicable to estimate
the financial impact of changes in the assumptions based on which the Management estimates the need for
provisions at the reporting date.

4. INTEREST INGOME

lnterest on loans to customers

2018

8,963

8,963 8,528

5. INTEREST EXPENSE

2017

8,528

2018

282

2017

91lnterest on borrowings and deposits

6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee income from agency activities

Fee income from guarantees and letters of credit
Fees from other transactions

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

lncome from sale of acquired real estate

Donations

Other

8. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Net salaries

Taxes and contributions

Other

282 9{

2018

1,308

115

206

2017

1,335

39

291

1,629 1,665

2018

176

46

78

2017

119

46

66

300 231

2018

2,502
1,866

1,365

2017

2,395

1,794

540

5,733 5,719

Personnel expenses include KM 1,034 thousand (2017: KM 994 thousand) of defined pension contributions
paid into the State pension fund. Contributions are calculated as percentage of the gross salary paid. The
average number of employees during the year ended 31 December 2018 was 117 (2017: 121).
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9. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

Memberships and charges

Maintenance

Supervisory Board and Audit Board remunerations

Energy

Telecommunications

Services

Bank fees

Materials

Advertising, entertainment, sponsorship

Rent

lnsurance

Other expenses

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS, NET

Loans to clients (Note 14)

Provisions for employee benefits (Note 20)

lmpairment of cash and cash equivalents (Note 11)

lmpairment of acquired assets (Note 15)

lmpairment of other assets (Note 15)
Additional / (income from release of) impairment allowance for
contingent liabilities and court proceedings (Note 20)

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current accounts with the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina

Current accounts with other banks in foreign and domestic
currency

Cash in hand

Effect of IFRS I application (Note 2)
lmpairment of cash and cash equivalents
(Note 10)

2018 2017

223

175

179

129

126

72

271

93

79

46

17

146

223

205

186

131

125

101

100

97

68

50

16

379

1,681 1,556

2018

2,256

238

83

(e10)

(e)

605

2017

2,005

242

149

108

(41\

2,263 2,463

31 December
2018

96,069

12,137

12

3{ December
2017

76,309

13,472

16

108,218 89,797

(404)

(83)

107,731 89,797

Cash and current accourts with other banks include KM 8,431 thousand (2017: KM 6,469 thousand) of funds

managed for and on behalf of third parties (Note 24).
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12. OBLIGATORY RESERVE WITH THE CENTRAL BANK
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank of Bosnia and

13,619Herzegovina 13,557

13,557 13,619

Effect of IFRS 9 application (Note 2) (61)

Net obligatory reserve with the Gentral Bank i3,496 13,619

During the reporting period the Bank has maintained the prescribed mandatory reserves with the Central Bank
(CBB|H), by applying a 10o/o rate on all deposits.

For the amount of obligatory reserve and liquidity funds held with the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina
(CBB|H), no interest was accounted on above mentioned amounts by the CBB|H in 2018.

Calculated impairment of the obligatory reserve at the CBB|H, as effect of IFRS g application, amounts to KM

61 thousand.

13. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES FROM BANKS
31 December

2018

1,488

(1,488)

31 December
2017

1,534

(1,534)

Loans and advances to banks include interest receivable in the amount of KM 125 thousand (31 December

2017: KM 127 thousand). IFRS 9 application did not have effect on loans to banks.

Movement rn gross exposure

Bank
Stage 1 Stage 2

Loans to banks

Less: impairment allowance

Total net loans to banks

Gross carrying amount as at I January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

FX adjustments

Other changes

Stage 3

1,534

total

1,534

(46) (46)

1,488 1,489As at 31 December 2018

41



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financialstatements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

13. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM BANKS (CONTTNUED)

Loans and receivables from banks (continued)

Movement in impairment allowance

Stage I
Allowance for expected credit losses as at 1

January 2018

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

lmpairment allowances (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018

14. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES FROM CLIENTS

Short-term loans:

Corporate

Retail

Current portion of long-term loans

Long-term loans (excluding current portion):

Corporate

Retail

Less: impairment allowance

Bank
Stage 2 Stage 3

1,534

(46)

Total

1,534

(46)

1,488 1,488

31 December
2018

6,466

166

28,590

31 December
2017

1,161

25,471

35,222 26,632

194,758

4,503

193,948

4,909

199,261 198,857

234,483 225,489

(36,357) (30,600)

198,126 194,889
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

Loans to customers include interest receivables, which comprise of unpaid due interest and fees, and accrued
interest in the amount of KM 783 thousand (31 December 2017: KM 1,073 thousand) and are presented net of
deferred fees in the amount of KM 854 thousand (31 December 2017: KM 1,072 thousand).

Changes in impairment allowance can be presented as follows:
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Balance at the beginning of the year

Effect of IFRS I application (Note 2)

Net changes in impairment allowance (Note 10)

Write-offs

Balance at the end of the year

Analysis of gross amount of loans by industry:

Corporate loans

Manufacturing

Realestate and rental business, etc.
Trade

Construction

Public administration and defence

Agriculture

Hospitality

Transportation, storage and communication

Other

Retailloans
Entrepreneurship

Housing loans

30,600

5,776

2,256

(2,275)

28,729

2,005

(134)

36,357 30,600

31 December
2018

31 December
2017

78,436

56,899

24,879

12,443

10,632

10,165

4,326

1,259

20,937

67,280

47,002

29,003

14,392

38,656

9,1 93

1,802

1,30s

20 359

228,992 219,976

5,341

150

5,337

176

5,491 5,513

234,493 225,499

43



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

14. LOANS AND REGETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

Gross exposure

Stage I Stage 2

31 December2OlS
Stage 3 POCI

31 December
2017

Total

144,508

7,792

73,189

Total
lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total

152,145 152,145

9,962

51,926 20,450 72,376

9,962

152,145 9,962 51,926 20,450 234,483 225,489

Movement rn gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December 2017
IFRS 9 effect
Gross carrying amount as at
1 January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Transfers to POCI

Repaid assets

Write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2

144,508
(10,410)

7,792
10,658

Bank

Stage 3

54,231
(248)

POCt

18,958

Total

225,489

134,098

50,792

(9,225)

4,939

(1,024)

(1,3e0)

18,450

6,083

(3,115)

(4,e3e)

1,174

(5,650)

53,983

4,205
(4,843)

(150)

7,040
(5e3)

(5,441)

(2,275)

18,958

1,709

593

(810)

225,489

62,789
(1 7,1 83)

(34,337)

Q,275\

(26,045) (2,041)

152,145 9,962 51,926 20,450 234,483

44



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

Movement in impairment allowance

Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Allowance for expected credit losses as
at 31 December 2017

IFRS I application effect
Allowance for expected credit losses as
at 1 January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Transfers to POCI
(Decrease) / increase from balance
change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018 3,844 1,425 25,760 5,329 36,357

3,261
(49)

804

1,981

22,496

3,388

4,049 30,600

5,776456

3,212

1,449

(275)

792

(58)

(121)

2,795

478

(7e)

(7e2)

85

(1,086)

25,874

676

(1,528)

(27)

1,207

(383)

2,216

2,161

(2,275)

4,505

440

383

36,376

3,043

(1,882)

1,095

2,256

(2,275)

(1 ,1 55)

632

34

(1,360) 823
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

a) Gorporate - credit quality

Gross exposure

Stage 1 Stage 2

31 December2018
Stage 3 POCI

31 December
2017

Total

132,646

7,751

69,577

Total
lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total

112,313 112,313

9,823

47,789 20,450 68,239

9,823

112,313 9,823 47,789 20,450 190,375 209,974

Movement in gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December2017
IFRS 9 effect
Gross carrying amount as at
1 January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Transfers to POCI

Repaid assets

Write-offs

As at 3f December 2018

Stage I

132,646

(10,070)

Stage 2

7,751

10,301

Bank

Stage 3

50,619

-231

POCI

18,958

Total

209,974

122,576

15,664

(8,178)

4,768
(e34)

(e77)

18,052

5,954

(3,1 1 3)

(4,768)

1,084

(5,394)

50,388

4,039

(4,815)

(150)

6,371

(5e3)

(5,176)

(2,275)

18,958

1,709

209,974

27,366
(16,106)

(20,606) (1,992)

112,313 9.823 47,789 20,450 190,375

593

(810) (28,584)

- (2,2751

46



Development Bank of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Notes to the financialstatements
for the year ended 31 December 2O1B

(All amounts are expressed in thousand KM, unless otherwise stated)

14. LOANS AND REGETVABLES FROM GLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

a) Gorporate - credit quality (continued)

Movement in impairment allowance

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Allowance for expected credit losses as
at 31 December 2017

IFRS 9 application effect

Allowance for expected credit losses as
at 1 January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Transfers to POCI
(Decrease) / increase from balance
change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

As at31 December2018

3,013

(48)

790

1,946

21,900

3,264

4,049

456

29,652

5,618

2,965

733
(254)

778

(43)

(5e)

25,064

606

(1,524)

(27)

1,121

(383)

4,505

383

823

35,270

2,249
(1,857)

2,736

470

(7e)

(778)

70

(1,062)

(1,114) 44

41 (1,335)

440

1,895

1,688
(2,2751

825

1,217

(2,27s)

3.006 1.401 24,477 5,329 34,212
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

b) State and public sector - credit quality

Bank
Gross exposure
lnternal rating level

Performing
Low risk

Medium risk

High risk

Non-performing
Default

Total

31 December2018
Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total

38,617 38,617

31 December
2017

Total

10,002

38,617 38,617 10,002

Movement in gross exposure

Gross carrying amount as at
{ January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018

Movement in impairment allowance

Allowance for expected credit losses as at 1

January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

Impairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018

Bank

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

200

697

(1e)

(1 04)

574

Bank
Stage 2 Stage 3Stage {

10,002

34,749
(e60)

(5,174)

Total

10,002

34,749
(e60)

74(5

38,617 38,617

Total

200

697

(1e)

(104)

574

774 774
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

c) Retail - credit quality

Bank 31 December2olg
Gross exposure Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3
lnternal rating level
Performing
Low risk 1,215
Medium risk - 139 -

High risk

Non-pelforming
Default 4.197

Total 1,215 139 4,137 5,491

Movement in gross exposure
Bank

Stage 2

Total

1,215

139

31 December
2017

Total

1,860

41

4,137 3,612

5,513

Gross carrying amount as at
31 December2017
IFRS 9 effect
Gross carrying amount as at
1 January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Repaid assets

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018

Stage 1

1.860

{340)

Stage 3

3.612
(7\

Total

5.51341

357

1.520

379

(87)

171

(e0)

(413)

(265)

398

129

(2)

(171)

90

(256)

(4e)

3.595

166

(28)

669

(265)

5.513

674
(117)

(57e)

1.215 139 4.137 5.491
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14. LOANS AND RECETVABLES FROM CLTENTS (CONTTNUED)

c) Retail - credit quality (continued)

Movement in impairment allowance

Bank

Allowance for expected credit losses as at 31
December 2017

IFRS I application effect
Allowance for expected credit losses as at 1

January 2018

New financing

Derecognized assets (excluding write-offs)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

(Decrease) / increase from balance change

lmpairment (Note 10)

Write-offs

Other changes

As at 31 December 2018

Stage 1

48
(1)

Stage 2

14

35

Stage 3

686

124

Total

748

158

47

19

(2)

14

(1 5)

(62)

63

17

810

70

(4)

49

8

906

97

(6)

(14)

15

(24)

(1 0)

(25)

86

321

473

374

465

24 1,283 1,371

Weighted average annual nominal and effective interest rates as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

were as follows:

64

Corporate loans

Corporate

Retail

31 December2018
Nominal i.r. Effective i.r

31 December2017
Nominali.r. Effective i.r

3.63%

3.34o/o

3.89%

3.60%

4.02o/o

3.41o/o

4.35o/o

3.670/o
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15. OTHERASSETS

Acquired assets

Other assets

Total impairment of other assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

IFRS 9 application effect (Note 2)

lmpairment of acquired assets (Note 10)

lmpairment of other assets (Note 10)

Balance at the end of the year

31 December
2018

1,615

200
(617i

31 December
2017

1,422

637
(1 ,531)

Total other assets (net) 1,19g 528

The impairment of other assets is mostly related to impairment of assets acquired for further sale

Changes in impairment can be presented as follows:
31 December

2018
31 December

2017

1,2741,531

5

(e10i

(e)

149

108

617 1,531
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16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Gost

As at 1 January 2017

Additions

Disposals and write-offs

As at31 December2017

Additions

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2017

Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2017

Charge for the year

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Net carrying amount

As at31 December2018

As at 31 December 2017

Buildings Vehicles
Furniture and

equipment Total

7,481

2

195 I 9,149

205
(26)

,473
203
(26)

7,483 195 1,650 9,328

50

(41)
50

(41)

7,483 195 1,659 9,337

2,927 81

29

1,330

144

(26)

4,338

397

(26)

224

3.151 110 1,448 4,709

224 29 97

G1\

350

u1\

3,375 139 1,504 5,018

4,108 56 155 4,319

4,332 85 202 4,619
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gost

As at 1 January 2017

Additions

As at 31 December 2017

Additions

Disposals and write-offs

As at 31 December 2018

Accumu lated depreciation
Asatl January2017
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2017

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2018

Net carrying amount

As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

Leasehold
improvements

6

Software

940

Total

946

66

6 946 952

(6)

105 105

(6)

1,051 1,051

70

737

70

737

807 807

76 76

883 883

168 168

6 139 145
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18. CURRENTACCOUNTSAND DEPOSITS FROM GUSTOMERS

Demand deposr'fs

Private enterprises

Cantonal and municipality governments

lndividuals and entrepreneurs

Public companies

Total demand deposffs

Purpose deposr'fs

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina

Government of Tuzla Canton

Public companies

Total p urpose deposr'fs

Term deposits
ln domestic currency
Government of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina (guarantee
deposit)

Federal Employment Agency

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina

Private enterprises

ln foreign currency

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - EUR

31 December
2018

3,756

33,244

442

256

31 December
2017

5,223

757

495

286

37,698 6,761

18,359

5,961

25

36,721

5,075

185

24,345 41,981

57,952

11,368

10,000

522

51,914

10,874

5,000

22

79,842 67,810

231 231

Total term deposr'fs 80,073 68,041

Totaldeposits 142,116 116,783

The Bank does not pay interest on demand deposits, purpose deposits and term deposits, except for one part

of a guarantee deposit from the Government of FBiH in the amount of KM 5,000 thousand (1% p.a.).

19. BORROWTNGS
31 December

2018
31 December

2017
Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - Saudi
Fund loan for development, interest rale 2o/o p.a. with maturity date
31 August2021
Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina - Belgian
merchandise loan, interest free with maturity date 31 December
2027

1,281 1,631

585 651

1,866 2,282

ln accordance with the contract signed between the Bank and the Government of the FB|H, the Bank has

assumed obligation to redeem part of the borrowings as contracted between the Government and the creditors.
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20. PROVISIONS

As at 1 January 2017

lncrease (Note 10)

Decrease (Note 10)

Decrease due to payment

As at 31 December 2017

IFRS I application effect (Note 2)

lncrease (Note 10)

Decrease (Note 10)

Decrease due to payment

Performance guarantees

Undrawn lending commitments

Advance and payment guarantees

21. OTHER LIABILITIES

Agency liabilities (Note 24)

Deferred income

Accrued expenses

Trade payables

Liabilities for interest on deposits

Other

Retirement
severance
payments

496

Gontingent Gourt
liabilities proceedings

34380

Total

910

245 (

(3)

@1)

41 204
(3)

(41)

697 339 34 1,070

259
(21)

(191)

1,393

605

1,393

864

(21)
(191)

As at 31 December 2018 744 2,337 34 3,115

As at 31 December 2018, the total value of claims initiated against the Bank amounted to KM 2,685 thousand.

Out of this amount, KM 2,283 thousand relate to labour disputes and KM 402 thousand relate to other claims

against the Bank.

For part of the labour disputes, the Bank concluded extrajudicial settlements by which the employees waive
their claims, and the Bank undertakes to pay the employee's attorneys' fees incurred. Accordingly, for this
purpose the Bank formed provisions in the amount of KM 34 thousand.

Given the differing court practices in making decision on labour disputes, the Management of the Bank has not

been able to estimate the outcome of the outstanding proceedings, hence provisions have not been created,
except for those mentioned above.

Management's estimate is that the Bank will not lose other proceedings against it.

Commitments and contingencies (Off balance sheet exposure) as at 31 December 2018 were as follows:
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

*

18,232

5,350

10,362

2,090

531

23,592 12,983

31 December
2018

8,431

330

102

71

38

57

31 December
2017

6,469

786

61

63

19

20

7,4189,029
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22. REGISTERED CAPITAL
31 December

2018

As of 31 December, balances resulting from related party transactions include:

KM ,000 Type of 31 December 2018
relation Receivables Liabilities

Government of Federation
of Bosnia and Owner
Herzegovina - 89,750

Common
Public institutions owner 24 18,495

60 204 143

60,228 108,388

31 December
2018

31 December2017
Receivables Liabilities

96,658

16,641

76,171 352

76,191 113,65{

% %

Government of Federation of Bosnia and
Herzegovina 1 00 163,61 5 1 00 163,61 5

According to Article 3 of the Law on Development Bank of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the

capital was supposed to be increased for the amount of KM 400 million from the budget of the Federation in

equalinstalments in the period 2008-2011.

Up to 31 December 2018, the Government has not yet provided the capital injection according to the agreed

dynamic and amounts.

23. RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS

Related parties are entities which directly or indirectly, through on or more intermediaries, control the Bank or

are under the Bank's control.

The major part of transactions with related parties comprise of transactions with the Government of the FBiH,

the 100% owner of the Bank, and other companies and institutions that are in the Government of the FBiH's

major ownership (over 51%).

20
Companies in majority
ownership of the
Government of FBiH

Government of Federation
of Bosnia and
Herzegovina

Public institutions
Companies in majority
ownership of the
Government of FBiH

31 December2018
Receivables Liabilities

927

382

31 December2017
Receivables Liabilities

979

355

Common
owner

Type ofKM'000 relation

Owner
110 92

Common
owner

Common
owner

4,797 3,005 3,894 1.577

6,106 3,115 5,228 1,669

Remunerations of the Management and Superuisory Board

The remuneration of the members of the Management and Supervisory Board during the year ended 31

December 201 8:

Gross salaries and other benefits

Supervisory Board members' remunerations

Other benefits

2018

667

150

46

2017

572

142

65
779863
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24. FUNDS MANAGED FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES

The Bank manages significant funds for and on behalf of the Government of Federation of Bosnia and
Herzegovina (Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Development, Entrepreneurship and Craff, Ministry of Agriculture,
Water Management and Forestry, Ministry of Displaced Persons and Refugees, and Ministry of Environment
and Tourism) with the purpose of financing reconstruction projects and Federal Employment Agency projects
aimed at financing employment incentives and upkeep of employment. Those assets are held separately from
other Bank assets. The bank calculates and charges a fee for those services in accordance with a contract
signed with the provider of assets.

PLACEMENTS

Funds placed per project:

Water and gas supply

Manufacture and processing

Healthcare and education

Agriculture

Employment incentives

Road construction and transport
Forestry

Micro finance

Other

Total placed by prgects:
Receivables for accrued interest and fees

Total

SOURCES

Government of Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Federal Employment Agency
Other

Total sources:
Liabilities for accrued interest and fees

Total
Current liabilities from funds managed for and on behalf of
third parties (Notes 11 and 211

31 December
2018

40,827

41,469

38,320

36,355

11,658

1,593

352

540

31 December
2017

43,031

42,435

38,167

36,307

12,053

2,240

352

2.896

171,104

I 400

180.504

177,481

8.769

186,250

167,191

11,658

51

171,712

12,053

63

178,900

10,035
183,929

8 891

192.719188.935

8,431 6,469

The Bank does not bear the risk for these placements and charges a fee for its services.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operating

risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risks.

The Management Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's risk

management framework.

Risk management is carried out by the Bank's departments in charge for individual risks under policies

suggested by the Management Board, and approved by the Supervisory Board.

Risk steering and risk controlling processes are adjusted in a timely manner to reflect changes in the market

environment.

This note aims to provide information on Bank's exposure to all of the above stated risksi and its goals, policies

and procedures aimed to measure and manage the risks, as well as to manage capital of the Bank.

25.1 Gredit risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full

when due, which will result in the Bank's financial loss.

The credit risk is the most significant risk which the Bank faces in the course of its operations, and it is analyzed

and monitored on an individual loan and client basis, as well as in relation to the whole portfolio.

To manage the level of credit risk, the Bank only deals with counterparties which are creditworthy and, if

possible, obtains sufficient collateral.

The choice of appropriate securities of the credit exposures depends on:

Creditworthiness of the client

Risk of the financed project

Estimated value of collateral.

ln order to minimise credit risk, the Bank applies the Decision on definition, evaluation and treatment of

collateral for loan and potential placement security, and secures its credit exposures by taking one or more of

the following instruments:

- Cash;

Bank and corporate guarantees;

Bills of exchange and unconditional guarantees, issued by the responsible authorities as defined

in the Decision;

- Mortgages over properties;

Pledge over business assets such as equipment, inventory and receivables.
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25. FtNANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk ctassification (internat rating)

Each exposure that is measured at amortized cost and at fair value are allocated to one of the following
categories.

Credit risk level Exposure

Credit risk level 1 Low credit risk level exposures

Performing Overdue less or equal to 30 days

FBA classification lower or equal to B 5%

Exposure in non-default status

Credit risk level 2 Medium credit risk level exposures

Underperforming overdue over 30 days and ress or equar to 90 days

FBA classification greater than 85%

signifrcant increase of credit risk (increase of pD parameter;
deterioration of debtor's financiar indicators; non-compriance

.-r"""TIr"Tr:"JJ, 
special watch list ror exposures)

credit risk level 3 High credit risk level exposures (non-performing)

Non-performing Overdue over g0 days

lmpairment individually assessed.

Exposure in default status

write-off There is evidence that debtor has significant financial
difficurties and there are no rearistic recovery indicators

lmpairment and provisioning poticies (applicable from 1 January 201g)

Beginning with 1 January 2018, in accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank appties an Expected credit Loss (ECL)
model for all debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at fair value.

lmpairment losses for individual risk or portfolio risk are estimated for customers from all segments and for all
types of exposures.

The Bank performs segmentation by group of clients (corporate, retail, financial institutions), level of risk (credit
risk level 1,2 0r 3) and iisk assessment method (group or individual).

For exposures and customers classified in Credit level 1 (Performing) group risk assessnent method is applied
and 12-month expected credit losses (12-month ECL) are calculated.

Expected credit loss

12-month ECL

group assessment

Lifetime ECL

gioup assessment

Lifetime ECL

individual assessment

Exposure or exposures
are written-off
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25. FtNANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

For exposures and customers classified in Credit risk level 2 (Underperforming) group risk assessment method

is applied and lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) are calculated.

For exposures and customers classified in Credit risk level 3 (Non-performing) group risk assessment method

is applied and lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) are calculated.

Definition of default and recovery status

The default status is determined at client level and its total exposure to both legal entities and population.

Default status is identified if any of the following conditions are met: the client is overdue for more than 90 days

in a material amount; for reprogrammed / restructured loans at the moment of recognition; when it is estimated

that it is unlikely that the client (debtor) will fully comply with his obligations, regardless of the possibility of

settlement from collateral; when the liquidation or bankruptcy of the client was initiated.

A three month recoveql period was established for the client's recovery. Exception are rescheduled /
restructured loans for which a six-month recovery period was established, that is, if the grace period is agreed,

six months after the expiration of the grace period.

PD assessment process

PD represents the likelihood that an exposure will be in default status in the next 12 months or for the duration

of the obligation.

For PD modelling, apprcach is based on TTC (Throughthe-Cycle) migration matrices for exposures in

homogeneous client groups.

For these exposures, risky homogeneous groups are defined on the basis of days overdue and status of

reprogrammed i restructured exposures. Data modelling for the previous five-year period is used in PD

modelling, and the movement of exposures overdue longer than 90 days in material amounts and

reprogrammed / restructured exposures is analysed.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level 2, i.e. exposures where there has been a significant increase in

credit risk from initial recognition, but which still have regular operations, IFRS 9 requires the PD parameter to

be calculated for the entire life of the instrument.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level 1, a portion of the PD parameter is used for 12 months, based on

12 migration matrices for each homogeneous group.

Starting from the PD value at 12-month level to migration matrices, the cumulative and conditional probabilities

of the PD parameter for the maturity of up to 5 years are calculated, which are used to calculate the marginal

values of the PD parameter. The marginal value of the lifetime PD parameter is shifted to the macroeconomic

value of expected future iosses taking into account the movements of GDP. The value of lifetime PD depends

on the remaining period until the maturity of the individual exposure.
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25. FTNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (contin ued)

Exposure at default (EAD)

Exposure at Default (EAD) is calculated as the total amount of credit exposure (on-balance and off-balance
sheet), including the interest that is expected to be collected up to the end of the loan term, forwhich impairment
allowances for credit losses are to be created and is calculated at the client level.

For exposures classified in Credit risk level 1 and matured exposures, EAD is equal to current exposure.

For undue exposures, lifetime EAD is calculated on the basis of the repayment plan, taking into account
amounts and maturity periods, up to the maximum exposure maturity date.

Loss given default (LGD)

Loss given default (LGD) is estimated for all exposures according to homogeneous groups on the basis of
transactions after the date of default and is expressed as a percentage. Each exposure is discounted at the
date of default at the appropriate discount rate.

The estimate and calculation of the LGD parameter is based on the effective value of collateral that falls under
each individual contract and based on the Cure Rate (CR) at the 12-month level and/or the lifetime of the
instrument, depending on whether the level of credit risk is 1 or 2.

Grouping financial assefs measured on a group basis

For the purpose of determining a significant increase in credit risk and recognition of group-based allowances,
on the basis of common credit risk characteristics, homogeneous groups were formed by the type of client:

legal entities

population

- financial institutions

By applying the lnternal lmpairment Methodology, exposures to each of these homogeneous groups are
classified according to the level of credit risk.

Credit risk is assessed at group level for all clients and exposures classified in credit risk levels 1 and 2.

For exposures classified in credit risk level 1, the expected credit loss is measured as a 12-month ECL.

For exposures classified into risk level 2 expected losses are measured as lifetime expected losses.

Grouping financial assets measured on an individuat basis

For all exposures that are not classified in credit risk levels 1 and2,the impairment loss, i.e. the expected credit
loss, is accounted for on an individual basis for the entire lifetime of exposure at the client level and the
associated individual exposures.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (internal rati ng) (contin ued)

Grouping financial assets measured on an individual basis (continued)

All customer exposures that have entered the default status are assessed on an individual basis.

ln an individual basis assessment, the Bank performs a separate analysis of the expected cash flows, i.e. the

expected credit loss (ECL) represents a probability weighted credit loss estimate based on three potential

scenarios, weighted by the likelihood of the occurrence of each scenario and their discounting to the present

value of the impairment loss.

The Bank uses three (3) most probable cash flow assessment scenarios whose aggregate probability must be

= l.

The individual basis implies an analysis of the expected future cash flows by observable placement and the

calculation of their present value.

Methodology for POCI

The Bank classifies as a POCI asset each individual item of assets that, when originated or purchased, carries

an individual impairment loss for expected credit losses mark, which meets any of the following criteria:

reprogrammed/restructured individual credit agreements for a period of 12 months prior to the date

of application of IFRS 9 and thereafter

individual exposures from previous line that did not recover in the recovery period defined for POCI

assets

new placements to clients who have placements with individual impairment in the portfolio

(classified in Stage 3)

items of assets purchased with economic loss (discount) of more than 5% of the net book value of

the asset.

At initial recognition, the value of POCI assets is calculated using the EIR adjusted for credit risk.

lmproved Credit Risk of POC|Assefs (Returning to Stage 2)

Items POCI assets can be returned to Stage 2 (due to credit recovery or credit risk improvement).

For the transfer of POCI assets in Stage 2, a twelve-month period of recovery was established. POCI asset

(loan) remain classified as POCI at least 12 months from the moment of classification, i.e. if a grace period was

contracted for POCI asset (loan) at the moment of recognition, at least 12 months after the expiration of the

grace period. Only after this recovery period, POCI assets (loans) can be classified in Stage 2 if not in the

default status on another basis.

POCI assets (loans) can never be classified in Stage 1.

ln the event that after the recovery and transition to Stage 2 there is a re-emergence of default status, exposure

is classified in Stage 3.
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25. FTNANC|AL RtSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk classification (i nternal rati ng) (continued)

Methodology for POCI (continued)

Accounting model of POd asset treatment

POCI assets are measured at amortized cost.

At initial recognition, expected credit losses are included in the fair value of POCI assets, so the impairment
allowances equal to zero.

At the reporting date, the Bank recognizes only cumulative changes in Lifetime credit losses through profit or
loss (FVPL) as impairment allowances for POCI assets.

Favourable changes in expected credit losses (decrease) are recognized as impairment gains and if the lifetime
expected credit losses are less than the expected credit losses that were initially recognized in the estimated
cash flows and the negative changes (increase) are recognized as a cost.

Significant lncrease of Credit R sk (SICR)

For the purpose of continuously determining increased credit risk, the risk changes for all the Bank's clients are
monitored at least annually. According to the Methodology, all placements to a client for which an increased
credit risk is determined for the next reporting date are classified in Stage 2 according to any of the following
criteria:

customer's delay in paying any significant overdue liabilities longer than 31 days by the IFRS
counter, and shorterthan g0 days

the client is in financial difficulties but is not in the default status
FBA classification is greater than B b%

ln addition, the criteria for assigning a client to Stage 2 may be as follows:

non-compliance with contractual provisions

loss of key customers or suppliers

known information on future events

and similar.

Exit from the status of increased credit risk is due to the lack of any criteria that have been classified by the
client in the relevant status for its occurrence, and the verification of all indicators is carried out at least once a
year, within the annual client monitoring.
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25. FTNANCTAL RTSKMANAGEMENT(CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account any collateral or other increased

value
Maximum credit

exposure
Gontingent

Net liabilities /
exposure guarantees

31 December2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans and receivablesfrom clients 23,582 232,812

319,353 23,582 342,935 232,812
31 December2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables from clients

Fair
value of

Total collateral

107,731
13,496

198,126

107,731
13,496

221,708

89,797
13,619

194,889

89,797
13,619

207,87212,983 223,104

298,305 12,983 311,288 223,104

For statement of financial position items, the above exposures are based on net carrying amounts as shown in

the statement of financial position. The table above represents the maximum credit risk exposure as at 31

December2018and31 December20lT,withouttakingaccountof anycollateralorotherincreaseinvalue.

Estimated value of property that serves as collateral is determined by the value of the initial evaluation by

independent evaluators i real estate agents at the time of loan approval, reduced by a fixed percentage,

depending on the type of collateral and reduced proportionately to the extent that it also serves as collateral

security for other credit exposure. ln order to verify the adequacy of the impairment, the re-valuation of collateral

is done in accordance with the principles and rules of the collateral management system, taking into

consideration the volatility of the value of the collateral and the time required for its implementation, under the

influence of local and global market conditions. Guarantees and promissory notes do not have the declared

value in the table, although they are usually required as collateral.

During the year, the Bank, in positions of non-financial assets, has items acquired by taking possession of

collateral that are used as collateral in credit exposure in the case of non-repayment of the debt by the debtor.

This process of acquiring is mainly related to real estate, equipment, vehicles. The acquired assets are shown

as such in the statement of financial position of the Bank at the time when the conditions are met for its

acquisition in accordance with IFRS and local regulations. The Bank's policy is to sell the assets acquired in

this way, and during the t,me of ownership of these assets until they are sold to third parties, the assets can be

temporarily used for the operations of the Bank or to rent to third parties. The acquired assets are presented in

Note 15.
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25. FTNANCTAL RrSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

Restructured loans

During the year, the Bank carried out the restructuring of certain loans to customers, with the aim of achieving
better recoverability. Restructuring is usually done after the initial deterioration of the financial situation of the
client or for the purpose of preventing further deterioration. Wherever possible, the Bank's position improves

by acquisition of additional collateral.
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Gross restructured loans

Less: impairment allowance
37,393

(13,089)
39,542
(9,199)

24,304 30,354

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment

Glassification of loans by credit risk level

For the purpose of credit monitoring and credit risk management, the Bank's credit portfolio is divided into the
following groups:

Loans with low credit risk (performing loans) - loans not impaired for 12-month expected losses,
on group level;

Loans with medium risk level (performing loans) - loans impaired for lifetime credit losses, on group

level;

Loans with high credit risk level (non-performing loans) - loans impaired for lifetime expected
losses, on individual level, including POCI assets.

\n2017, the portfolio was divided into: a) Undue unimpaired loans (IBNR impairment), b) Due unimpaired toans
(IBNR impairment) and c) lmpaired loans.

Analysis of the credit portfolio in accordance with the aforementioned categories is as follows:
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25. FINANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Classification of loans by credit risk level (continued)
31 December

2018

Banks
Loans with high risk level

Gross exposure
Less: impairment allowance

1,488

Net exposure

1,499
(1,488)

31 December
2017

1 534

1,534
(1,534)

Corporate

Loans with low risk level (performing loans)

Loans with medium risk level (performing loans)

Loans with low risk level (non-performing loans)

Gross exposure
Less: impairment allowance

Net exposure

Gross exposure - POCI

Less: lmpairment allowarce

Net exposure

Retail

Loans with low risk level (performing loans)

Loans with medium risk level (performing loans)

Loans with low risk level (non-performing loans)

Gross exposure
Less: impairment allowance

Net exposure

Total gross exposure

Portfolio impairment allowance (1 2-month ECL)

Portfolio impairment allowance (lifetime ECL)

I ndividual impairment allowances

150,930

9,823

47 789

208,542
(29,658)

'142,648

7,751

69,577

219,976
(29,852)

178,884 190,124

20,450 nla

(5.328) nla

194,006 190,124

1,215

139

1,860

41

3,6124 137

5,491
(1,371)

5,513

(748)

4,120 4,765

235,971 227,023

(3,844)

(1,425)
(32,576)

(4,065)

N/p

(28,069)

198,126 194,889Net exposure
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25. FTNANGTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Credit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Glassification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

a) Loans with low credit risk level

The quality of the portfolio of loans to customers that have a low risk level and are impaired on portfolio level

for 12-month ECL can be assessed through the internal standard monitoring system. Loans to customers are
regularly monitored and systematically reviewed in order to identify any irregularities or warning signs. These

loans are subject to constant monitoring with the aim of taking timely action based on improvemenVdeterioration

of client risk profile.

An overview of gross exposure of loans with low risk level according to the type of loan user is as follows:

Banks Gorporate Retail Total
31 December2018

Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 147,150 1,151 148,301

150,930
(3,780)

1,215
(64)

152,145
(3,844)

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

31 December2018

Gross exposure (undue loans)

lmpairment (IBNR)

Net

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

72% 22o/o

Banks Gorporate Retail

50k3% 3%

64%

Total

142,648
(3,697)

1,860
(61)

144,509
(3,758)

138,951 1,799 140,750

3%s%3%

65% 340% 64o/o
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25. FTNANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Credit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Classification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

b) Loans with medium credit risk level

For loans to and receivables from customers between 31 and 90 days overdue, i.e. loans with medium risk

level, gross exposure is impaired on portfolio level for lifetime ECL. The gross amount of loans to and

receivables from customers with medium credit risk was as follows:

Banks Gorporate Retail Total
31 December2018
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 8,422 115 8,537

9,823

(1,401)

139

(24)
9,962

(1,4251

Impairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

31 December2018
Gross exposure (due unimpaired loans)

lmpairment (IBNR)

14%

5%

Banks Gorporate

7,751

(306)

17%

3%

Retail

14%

4%

Total

7,792
(307)

41

(1)

Net 7 40

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

c) Loans with high credit risk level

The breakdown of the gross and net amount of the loans to customers that are impaired for lifetime ECL on

individual level, along with the estimated value of related collateral held by the Bank as security (presented up

to the maximum amount of the related exposure), are as follows:

Banks Corporate Retail POCI Total

31 December2018
Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net 23,312 2.854 15,122 41,288

7

4%

3%

2%

1%

4%

4%

1,488

(1,488)

47,789
(24,477',)

4,137 20,450 73,864
(1,283) (5,328) (32,576)

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in total loans

100%

100%

51%

23%

31%

75%

26%

100%

44%

s1%
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25. FTNANCIAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Classification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

c) Loans with high credit risk levet (continued)

Banks Corporate Retail
Estimated value of collateral as at 31
December 20{8
Deposits

Mortgages 194,221

Total

19,584 213,905

Total

31 December 2017

Gross exposure

lmpairment

Net

lmpairment rate

Exposure share in totalloans

Estimated value of collateral as at 31
December 2017

Deposits

Mortgages

lmpairment
(Stagel/Stage2)
lmpairment
(Stage 3)

lmpairment

194,221 19.584 213,805

Banks Gorporate Retail Total

1,534
(1,534)

69,577
(25,849)

3,612
(686)

74,723
(28,069)

43,729 2,926 46,654

100%

100%

37%

32%

19%

66%

38%

3s%

TotalBanks Corporate Retail

925

161,221

925

170,9229,601

Total 162,146 9,601 171,747

Analysis by days overdue

Loans to clients of the Bank (in gross and net amount) by days overdue are presented En the table below:

Banks Gorporate Retail Total
31 December2018
No delay
Overdue between 1 and 90 days
Overdue over 90 days

Totalgross loans and receivables
43 185

228,992 5A91 235,971

1,488

155,881
34,896
38,215

1,202
807

3,482

157,093
35,703

1,499

(1,488)

(5,1 81 )

(29,805)

i88)

(1,283)

(5,269)

(32,576\

(34,986)

194,006

(1,3711 (37,845)

198,126Net loans and receivables

(1,488)

4,120
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25. FTNANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.1 Gredit risk (continued)

25.1.1 Gredit risk management and policy provisions and impairment (continued)

Classification of loans by credit risk level (continued)

c) Loans with high credit risk level (continued)

Banks Gorporate Retail
31 December2018
No delay
Overdue between 1 and 90 days
Overdue over 90 days

Totalgross loans and receivables 1,534 219,976

Total

534

132,769
46,623
40,584

1,539
3,437

537

134,308
50,060
42,655

5,513 227,023

Group impairment

lndividual impairment

lmpairment

Net loans and receivables

25.2 liquidity risk

(1,534)

(4,003)

(25,849)

(62)

(686)

(4,065)

(28,069)

(29,8521 |f481 (32,1341

190,124 4,765 194,989

Liquidity risk arises in the funding of the Bank's activities and in the management of positions. Treating liquidity

risk, the Bank consolidates its operations in accordance with the relevant decisions and internal policies aimed

at maintenance of liquidity reserves, harmonization of assets and liabilities indicators and liquidity limits.

The Bank has limited access to sources of finance. Funds are raised through a limited number of instruments

including deposits of FB|H Government and the Federal Employment Service, deposits of legal entities,

borrowings and equity. This limits the flexibility of financing and represents a reliance on deposits and payments

of capital by the Government of the Federation.

The Bank strives to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of liabilities

with different maturities. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monitoring changes in

funding required to meet business goals. Furthermore, the Bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its

liquidity risk management strategy.

{1,534)
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25. F|NANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows the remaining contractual maturity of the Bank's assets and liabilities:
Up to 1 I to 3 3 months to Over 5

31 December 2018 month months I year I to S years years
Assets

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the
CentralBank
Loans and receivables from
clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and
intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits
from customers

Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

Liquidity gap 61,682 6.141 31,505 79,971 (17g,2ggl

107,731

13,496

11,653

85

6,354 30,933

1,113

107,731

13,496

198,126

1,199

4,497

114,703 34,483

4,487

132,965 6,354 32,046 114,703 39,970 325,03g

62,043

534

8,706

213 279

165

97

31,442

1,114

2,043

133

48,631

260

142,116

1,966

373

93

168,912

3,115

9,029

168,912

Total liabilities and equity 71,293 541 34,732 219,269 325,039213
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25. FINANCIAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.2 Liquidity risk (continued)
Uptol
month

89,797

13,619

13,397

430

1to3
months

Over 5
years Total

89,797

13,619

194,889

528

4,764

3 months
tolyearlto5years31 December2017

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Obligatory reserve with the
CentralBank
Loans and receivables frorn
clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and
intangible assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits
from customers

Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

27,727

4,764

117,243 8,115 29,732 116,016 32,491 303,597

48,742

8,114

1

29,729

3

115,922

94

204 269

26,420

1,483

326

212

41,621

326

336

44

176,044

116,783

2,292

1,070

7,418

176,044

176

7,034

188

127

44

1

Total liabilities and equity 55,952 249 584 28,M1 218,371 303,597

Liquidity gap 61,29', 7,866 29,148 87,575 (185,880)

25.3 Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest

rate, foreign currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements

and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign

exchange rates and equity prices.

The Management Board sets limits and guidelines for monitoring and mitigating of market risks, which is

regularly monitored.

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Exposure to currency risk arises from credit, deposit-taking and trading activities and is controlled on a daily

basis in accordance with legal and internal limits for each currency, as well as in total amounts for assets and

liabilities denominated in or linked to foreign currencies.

Treasury department is responsible for daily management of the Bank's currency position in accordance with

legal and internal regulations.

ln order to manage foreign exchange rate risk more efficiently, the Bank monitors economic and other business

changes in the environment in order to predict possible changes in foreign currency activities, exchange rates,

currencies and risk.
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25. FtNANG|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (cONTtNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarizes the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017. The tables include the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts
categorized by currency.

31 December 2018 Other
KM EUR USD currencies Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables from clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and intangible

1 0,936 1 ,1 39

assets

Total assets

4,487 4,487

325,038

95,656

13,496

1 98,1 08

1,197

18

107,731

13,496

198,126

1 ,1gg1

312,944 10,937 1,157

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits from
customers

Borrowings

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

Total liabilities and equity

Net foreign exchange position

322,554 1,154 1,330

14',t,499

3,1 15

9,029

168.912

568

585

49

1,281

142,116

1,866

3,1 15

9,029

168,912

I

325,038

(9,610) 9.783 (1731
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25. FtNANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.1 Foreign currency risk (continued)

31 December2017
KM

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Obligatory reserve with the Central Bank

Loans and receivables from clients

Other assets
Property, equipment and intangible
assets 4,764

Total assets 290,111 11,686 1,800

76,331

13,619

194,870

527

EUR

11,685 1,781

19

Other
USD currencies Total

89,797

13,619

194,889

528

4,764

1

303,597

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and deposits from
customers

Borrowings

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Other liabilities

Registered capital and reserves

116,304

1,070

7,414

176,044

246

1,631

116,783

2,292

1,070

7,419

176,044

233

651

4

Total liabilities and equity 300,832 888 1,877 303,597

Net foreign exchange position (10,7211 10,798 (771

Foreign c urrency sensitivity analysis

The Bank is mainly exposed to EUR and USD. Since Convertible Mark (BAM) is pegged to EUR, the Bank is

not exposed to risk of change in the exchange rate of EUR, but is exposed to changes of EUR in relation to

other currencies.

The following table shows the Bank's sensitivity to a 10o/o increase and decrease in BAM against the USD. 10%

is the sensitivity rate used for reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and

represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates. The

analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and represent an adjustment

to their value at period end for an USD exchange rate movement of 10%. The sensitivity analysis includes

external loans that are denominated in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A

positive number below indicates an increase in profit when BAM strengthens by 10o/o against the USD. For a

10% weakening of the BAM against the USD, there would be an equal but opposite impact on the profit.
USD effect

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

(17) (8)Loss
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25. FtNANC|AL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.2. lnterest rate risk

The bank is subject to the risk of interest rate changes, the extent to which interest-bearrng assets and liabilities
mature or change rates at different times or in different amounts.

The majority of loans to legal entities and individuals are initially contracted at fixed interest rates. These
financial instruments are classified as instruments with fixed interest rates, and other such instruments with
variable interest rates. The Bank does not pay interest on deposits, except for part of the guarantee deposit of
the Government of FBiH KM 5,000 thousand (1% per annum). Decision on establishing and changes in interest
rates are made by the Supervisory Board at the proposal of the Board.

lnterest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities

The table below summarizes the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk at the end of the year. Assets and
liabilities are presented in the table at book value, and are categorized by the earlier cmtractual maturity date.
Those assets and liabilities that are not applicable interest rates are classified as "Nonjnterest bearing,,.

As at
31 December2018
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Obligatory reserve
with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables
from clients
Other assets
Property, equipment
and intangible assets

Non-interest
bearing

,||;",, 1-3 3months

month months to 1 year
1-5
years

Over 5
years Total

Fixed Effective
interest interest
rate rate

107,731

13,496

- 11,653
1,199

4,487

107,731

13,496

6,354 30,e33 114,703_ 34,483_ €l:133 1s7,884- 3.87o/o

4,487

Total assets 126,912 11,653 6,354 30,933 114,703 34,493 325,03g 1g7.gg4

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and
deposits from
customers
Borrowings
Provisions for
liabilities and charges
Other liabilities
Registered capitaland
reserves
Total liabilities and
equity

132,116
585

3,115
9,029

168,912

21; 21; Bs; 
1o'ooo 

'oX',113

3,1 15
9,029

10,000
1,281

1.00o/o

2.00o/o

168,912

313,757 213 214 954 10,000 325,039 11,291

lnterest rate risk - 11,653 6,141 30,719 113,949 24,493 186,603
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25. FTNANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.3 Market risk (continued)

25.3.2. lnterest rate risk (continued)

lnterest rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities (continued)

-!:9"1 1-3 3months

H|il, months to 1 yearAs at
31 December2017
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Obligatory reserve
with the Central Bank
Loans and receivables
from clients
Other assets
Property, equipment
and intangible assets

Fixed Effective
Total interest interest

rate rate

Non-interest
bearing

89,797

13,619

528

4,764

1-5
years

Over 5
years

13,397

89,797

13,619

8J14_ 2e,72e_ 115,e22 27,727- €0,313 1e4,263 4.31o/o

4,764

Total assets 108,708 13,397 8,114 29,729 115,922 27,727 303,597 194,263

Liabilities and equity
Current accounts and
deposits from
customers
Borrowings
Provisions for
liabilities and charges
Other liabilities
Registered capitaland
reserves
Totalliabilities and
equity

111,783
651

1,070
7,418

204 204 1,223
5,000 116,783

- 2,292

1,070
7,418

176,04

5,000
1,631

1.00o/o

2.00%

176,044

296,966 204 204 1,223 5,000 303,597 6,631

lnterest rate risk - 13,397 7,910 29,525 114,699 22,727 - 187,632
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25. F|NANCTAL R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

25.4. The estimation of fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length conditions. Where available, fair values are based on market prices. However,
for a significant part of the Bank's financial instruments, there are no readily available market prices. ln
conditions when market prices are not readily available, fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or
other appropriate techniques pricing. Changes in the accompanying assumptions, including discount rates and
estimated future cash flows, significantly affect the estimates. Therefore, the calculated fair market estimates
may not be realized in the sale of financial instruments in the current period, particularly taking into account the
impact of the global financial crisis and the lack of a liquid market in Bosnia and Hezegovina.

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying values of cash and balances with banks are generally deemed to approxinate their fair values.

Loans to clients

Given the specificity of the Bank, a large amount of the total loan portfolio carries a fixed interest rate and long-
term maturity and an interest rate below the market of the interest rate, which reflect the development
component of the Bank. Since the bank has no commercial orientation nor set goals that are a rarity for other
market participants, it is not practicable to calculate the fair value of loans to custcmers, nor would the
information have particular added value, taking into account the above stated specificities.

Deposifs from clients

For demand deposits and deposits with no defined maturities, fair value is the amount payable on demand at
the statement of financial position date. The estimated fair value of fixed-maturity deposits is based on
discounted cash flows using rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. lt is not
practicable to calculate the fair value of fixed-maturity deposits.

Borrowings

Bank borrowings are interest-free or carry a low fixed interest rate. The fair value of borrowings with fixed
interest rate is determined using a discounted future cash flows using interest rates currenfly offered for loans
with similar terms and conditions to borrowers with similar credit worthiness. lt is not practicable to calculate
the fair value of borrowings.

25.5. Capital management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept of "share capital" of the statement
of financial position, are:

' To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking market in the domestic
environment;

. To maintain a strong capital base to support business development.

The Bank's management regularly monitors capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital on the basis of
appropriate techniques that are based on the regulations of the Banking Agency of the Federation of Bosnia
and Herzegovina.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

I 25.5. Capital management (continued) 

The Bank as at 31 December 2018 was in line with all regulatory capital requirements and in accordance with I local regulations achieved a capital adequacy ratio of 91.8% (31 December 2017: 98.7%). 

The Bank's regulatory capital for monitoring adequacy according to the Agency's methodology consists of: 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

• Tier 1 capital or Core Capital: share capital (net of the carrying value of treasury shares), share 
premium, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained earnings; negative 
revaluation reserves arising from the revaluation of the fair value of assets 

• Tier 2 capital or Capital or Supplementary Capital: general reserves to cover loan losses, the Bank's 
assets estimated as good assets and 

• Deductible items. 

Risk-weighted assets are measured by means of hierarchy of four weights classified according to the nature of 
the assets and reflecting an estimate of associated credit, market and other risks, taking into consideration all 
eligible collateral or guarantees. Similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposures, with certain 
adjustments made in order reflect the volatility of potential losses. 

The table below shows the structure of regulatory capital and capital adequacy indicators at 31 December 2018 
and 31 December 2017, in accordance with local regulations (information on risk weighted assets is not 
audited), taken from the accounts submitted to the Agency for the periods then ended: 

2018 2017 
KM '000 KM '000 

Tier 1 Capital 

Share capital 163,615 163,615 
Reserves 1,587 1,458 
Intangible assets (168) (140) 
Uncovered loss - IFRS 9 {7,639) 

Total Tier 1 Capital 157,395 164,933 

Tier 2 Capital 
General reserves - Agency regulations 1,940 1,314 
Audited profit for the year 

Total Tier 2 Capital 1,940 1,314 

Adjustment for missing regulatory reserves {2,339) 3,925) 

Net Capital 156,996 162,322 

Risk weighted assets (unaudited) * 156,435 149,434 
Other weighted assets (unaudited) * 14,494 14,986 

Total weighted risk assets 170,929 164,420 

Capital adequacy ratio (%) 91.8% 98.7% 

* The risk weighted asset amounts in the table above were calculated in accordance with FBA regulations. 
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25.5. Capital management (continued) 

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

In accordance with the regulations of the Agency, the Decision on minimum standards for managing bank 
capital and capital protection adopted on 30 May 2014 ("Official Gazette of BiH" No. 46/14), audited profit for 
the period are included in the calculation of regulatory capital as of the day when the Audited financial 
statements are issued and approved by the shareholders of the Bank. In accordance with regulatory 
requirements in force at the date of the report of 31 December 2017, profit for the period was included in the 
calculation of regulatory capital if the audited financial statements were approved and adopted by the 
Supervisory Board prior to submission of the report to the Banking Agency. In the above calculation, audited 
profit for 2018 was not included in the calculation of capital adequacy as at 31 December 2018. 

26. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements were approved by the Management Board on 16 April 2019. 

Signed on behalf of the Management Board: 
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